
1 
 

CITY OF ATLANTIC COUNCIL MEETING 
JUNE 19, 2024 

Atlantic City Hall - City Council Chambers – 5:30 PM 
 

AGENDA 
1. Roll Call.  

 
2. Approve Agenda. 

 
3. Pledge of Allegiance. 

 
4. Adopt Consent Agenda Items. 

a. Minutes of the June 5, City Council Meeting.  
b. Cigarette Permits:  

i. Green Leaf Tobacco & Vaper, Inc. 
ii. Olsen Fuel Supply (Olive Street Station). 

iii. Olsen Fuel Supply (Olsen BP). 
b. Tree Trimmer Permit – Iowa Timber Solutions LLC. 
a. Bills: $298,254.81. 

 
5. Public Forum. 

 
6. Appointment and Administering the Oath of Office to Kat (Katrina) Niemann for the Library 

Board of Trustees.  
 

7. Appointment and Administering the Oath of Office to Dianna Blake for the Library Board of 
Trustees.  
 

8. Appointment and Administering the Oath of Office to David Schwab for the Library Board of 
Trustees.  
 

9. Public Hearing on Amending the FY 2024 Budget. 
 

10. Resolution #38-24 “Amending the FY 2024 Budget.” 
 

11. Resolution #39-24 “Approving the Transfer of Funds for the Second Half of Fiscal Year 2023-
2024.” 
 

12. Resolution #40-24 “Resolution Authorizing and Approving a Loan Agreement and Providing for 
the Issuance of a $90,000 General Obligation Solid Waste Management Note.” 
 

13. Resolution #41-24 “Amending Series 400 Code 405 Leaves of Absence of the Personnel 
Handbook to Add Grandchildren Under Funeral Leave.” 
 



2 
 

14. Resolution #42-24 “Adopting a Procurement Policy for State and/or Federal Government 
Administration of Grants.” 
 

15. Resolution #43-24 “Support for a Partnership Between the Atlantic School District and the City 
of Atlantic for a School Resource Officer (SRO) Position.  
 

16. Order to Authorize the Closure of Selected Streets, No Parking Requests, and Special Vehicle 
Permits to be Administered by the Atlantic Police Chief for RAGBRAI 2024.  
 

17. Administrator’s Report. 
 

18. Mayor’s Report. 
 

19. City Council & Student Representative Reports. 
 

20. Adjournment. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



3 
 

 

 

 

 

First Reading of Ordinance No. 1044 “.” 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 



1 
 

CITY OF ATLANTIC COUNCIL MEETING 
JUNE 19, 2024 

Atlantic City Hall - City Council Chambers – 5:30 PM 
 

AGENDA NOTES 
1. Roll Call.  

 
2. Approve Agenda. 

 
3. Pledge of Allegiance. 

 
4. Adopt Consent Agenda Items. 

a. Minutes of the June 5, City Council Meeting.  
b. Cigarette Permits:  

i. Green Leaf Tobacco & Vaper, Inc. 
ii. Olsen Fuel Supply (Olive Street Station). 

iii. Olsen Fuel Supply (Olsen BP). 
b. Tree Trimmer Permit – Iowa Timber Solutions LLC. 
a. Bills: $298,254.81. 

 
5. Public Forum. 

 
6. Appointment and Administering the Oath of Office to Kat (Katrina) Niemann for the 

Library Board of Trustees.  
The Atlantic Public Library Board of Trustees meets on the second Monday of each 
month at 5:30 p.m. Trustees are appointed for a six-year term by the mayor. Terms end 
on June 30 of the year listed by each member. 
 
The Mayor has nominated Kat (Katrina) Niemann to serve on the Library Board of 
Trustees. 
City Administrator Does Not Comment on Political Appointments 
 

7. Appointment and Administering the Oath of Office to Dianna Blake for the Library 
Board of Trustees.  
The Mayor has nominated Diana Blake to serve on the Library Board of Trustees. 
City Administrator Does Not Comment on Political Appointments 
 

8. Appointment and Administering the Oath of Office to David Schwab for the Library 
Board of Trustees.  
David Schwab is currently a member of the Library Board of Trustees. He has expressed 
interest in remaining on the Board. The Mayor has chosen to nominate him for an 
additional term serving on the Board.  



2 
 

City Administrator Does Not Comment on Political Appointments 
 

9. Public Hearing on Amending the FY 2024 Budget. 
During the June 5, 2024, meeting, the City Council set the date for the public hearing on 
the annual budget amendment. Details of the amendment are found in the following 
agenda item, at the bottom of the resolution.  
 

10. Resolution #38-24 “Amending the FY 2024 Budget.” 
If the City overspends on any of the nine state-defined budget activities (Public Safety, 
Public Works, Health & Social Services, Culture & Recreation, Community & Economic 
Development, General Government, Debt Service, Capital Projects, and Business 
Type/Enterprises) during the fiscal year, we are required to pass a budget amendment. 
To minimize these, Atlantic has chosen to make a single amendment towards the end of 
the fiscal year to reconcile our current budget with our final expenditures. This is a 
routine matter. The areas we traditionally have issues are within capital projects  
 
The FY 2024 Budget Amendment has been prepared by our Financial Consultant from 
the Iowa League of Cities, Teresa Rotschafer. These figures are her best approximation 
of where we have overspent or taken in more revenue during the fiscal year. She is still 
working on the bank reconciliation and financial reports at the time of this writing.   
City Administrator Recommends Approval 
 

11. Resolution #39-24 “Approving the Transfer of Funds for the Second Half of Fiscal Year 
2023-2024.” 
The City of Atlantic routinely transfers money between our 64 separate funds. The 
transfers are a critical component of making the City’s budget work effectively. In 
addition, it reconciles accurate cost-accounting with the desire to create transparency 
on what is being spent in each line item in each fund. Diffusing expenditures amongst a 
half dozen cost-centers makes that impossible. For example, Finance & Administration 
wages in many communities are expensed under a variety funds, making those budgets 
look much smaller than they are. In Atlantic, we account for those costs to each fund, 
then transfer out that money from the originating fund and deposit it into the General 
Fund. That way, if you want to see how much cash is being spent on wages for myself, 
Barb, Rich, and Amanda, you see the full and accurate amount in one line item. Not just 
a percentage in several line items, in several funds. The City also transfers money into 
escrow accounts for capital construction projects, equipment reserves, and funds for 
specialized purposes like new police officer training or paid time off (PTO) benefits being 
cashed out at the end of employment.  
 
These transfers are always in accordance with the rules established by State Statute, 
The Iowa Department of Management, local referendums, generally accepted 



3 
 

accounting principles (GAAP) and each of the 101 rules established by the Government 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB).  
 
These transfers are always outlined directly in the annual budget passed by the Council 
each year, but we usually see some last minute tweaks based on actual financial 
performance, this is to ensure that when the books are closed at the end of June, the 
fund balances, assuming there is not a total net loss of cash, reflect healthy growth that 
helps us maintain the highest ratings on both our management and liquidity scoring 
when we are reviewed by our credit risk assessor, S&P Global.   
 
In the past, the City just followed the budget on the transfers as sufficient 
documentation of activity, however auditors are requiring that a separate resolution be 
passed as the transfers occur.  
City Administrator Recommends Approval 
 

12. Resolution #40-24 “Resolution Authorizing and Approving a Loan Agreement and 
Providing for the Issuance of a $90,000 General Obligation Solid Waste Management 
Note.” 
The City is a member of a 28E organization that operates the Cass County Landfill. The 
City is required to support the Landfill financially, if the Landfill determines it is 
necessary. The Landfill has instituted a per-capita fee of $12.00 per resident to be 
assessed annually. The amount shall be $85,344, payable in four equal payments over 
the course of the fiscal year. The rest of the borrowing covers legal costs.  
 
Cities across the State work with local banks for a paper “debt” and make immediate 
payment of the principal and any interest before the ink is even dried. Since a debt is 
technically issued the City can levy property taxes to pay for the debt while not is not 
utilizing debt capacity as it is immediately closed. Banks often charge some 
administrative fee to do this, making the paperwork worth their time. However, Atlantic 
is very fortunate in that our official deposit bank, First Whitney Bank & Trust has 
generously agreed to offer this service for free. Keeping the costs on our taxpayers to 
the minimum required.  
 
This, however, is still a debt and requires all the paperwork of issuing a debt required 
under Iowa Code. 
 
The Council passed an identical resolution under Resolution #27-23 during the June 7, 
2023 City Council meeting. 
City Administrator Recommends Approval 
 



4 
 

13. Resolution #41-24 “Amending Series 400 Code 405 Leaves of Absence of the Personnel 
Handbook to Add Grandchildren Under Funeral Leave.” 
This was a recently caught oversight. In discussion with the Mayor, this is such a 
common-sense correction to the Personnel Handbook, this is moving directly to the 
Council. The Funeral Leave Policy currently states: 
 

“Funeral Leave 
In the event of death of a regular, full-time employee’s spouse, child (step), 
parent (step), brother, brother-in-law, sister, sister-in-law, mother-in-law, 
father-in-law, grandmother, grandfather, grandmother-in-law, and 
grandfather-in-law or other persons who are members of the employee’s 
household, said employee shall be granted up to three (3) working days leave of 
absence with pay for attendance at the funeral and other related functions. 
Additional days may be granted by the employer for up to, but not to exceed 
three (3) working days, and such days shall be deducted from the employee’s 
accrued sick leave account for each occurrence.”  

The intent of the policy appears to value grandparents, and children, so grandchildren 
are a natural extension of this focus on family. The resolution only adds grandchild to 
the list.  
City Administrator Recommends Approval 
 

14. Resolution #42-24 “Adopting a Procurement Policy for State and/or Federal 
Government Administration of Grants.” 
During the September 6, 2023 City Council meeting, the Council adopted a Federal 
Purchase Policy for the CDBG Downtown Upper Story Housing Grant for 300 Chestnut 
Street. The following is from those agenda notes.  
 

“The Whitney Development Corporation is the owner of 300 Chestnut Street. 
They applied for a CDBG Downtown Upper Story Housing Grant from the Iowa 
Economic Development Authority (IEDA). The grant has been awarded for 
$300,000, with the Group contributing $295,937 of its own resources and the 
City offering in-kind grant administration assistance to cover the local match. 
Combined, this will create four new apartments within the building.  
 
The CDBG program is a block grant to states, which is intended to reduce some 
of the federal red tape and regulations. This is done by using direct appropriation 
to states, as opposed to central, federal administration and oversight. Even so, 
there are still requirements that IEDA must oversee in accepting this money that 
originated from Washington DC.  
 



5 
 

IEDA currently has two requirements for the City to adopt as part of the grant. 
The first is a federal procurement policy. The City already has a procurement 
policy under its Comprehensive Financial Policy, but for this project, the federal 
guidelines must be adopted and utilized.” 

The Southwest Iowa Planning Council of Governments (SWIPCO) has requested we 
replace that policy with a Procurement Policy for State and/or Federal Government 
Administration Grants. This policy should be applicable beyond the scope of just the 300 
Chestnut Project.  
City Administrator Recommends Approval 
 

15. Resolution #43-24 “Support for a Partnership Between the Atlantic School District and 
the City of Atlantic for a School Resource Officer (SRO) Position.  
The City’s Personnel & Finance Committee met with Police Chief Hogue on May 23, 
2024 to discuss a potential partnership with the Atlantic Community School District for 
the creation of a School Resource Officer. The Personnel & Finance Committee has 
made the unanimous recommendation to the Council to move forward with the 
partnership; Understanding that we still need to create the 28E/information sharing 
agreement with the District.   
  
Grants are currently being applied for by the parties to help get the program off the 
ground. The Police Department will be working on some fundraising this summer/fall.  
 
The most likely scenario will be opening the position for hire later in the fall and if all 
goes well, have someone starting in that role when students return from Christmas 
break.  
 
The distribution of long-term costs has not been settled.  
City Administrator Recommends Approval as Long as the Risk of ANY Added Structural 
Expense to the City’s General Fund or Debt Service Fund is 0.00%.  
 

16. Order to Authorize the Closure of Selected Streets, No Parking Requests, and Special 
Vehicle Permits to be Administered by the Atlantic Police Chief for RAGBRAI 2024.  
Atlantic Police Chief Devin Hogue has made the following request for the management 
of RAGBRAI. Since he oversees keeping Atlantic residents and tourists safe (said tourists 
nearly doubling our population), I forward his requests directly to the Council and allow 
him or a Representative of the Police Department to speak directly to the request.  
 
This type of closure would be expected during an event such as RAGBRAI.  
City Administrator Recommends Approval 
 

17. Administrator’s Report. 



6 
 

 
18. Mayor’s Report. 

 
19. City Council & Student Representative Reports. 

 
20. Adjournment. 

 

 



 
4 
 
 
 
 



 
Minutes  

& 
Misc. 

 
 



 
City Council 

June 5, 2024 
5:30 pm 

 
The Atlantic City Council met in regular session in the Council Chambers at City Hall with Mayor Pro Tem 
Otte presiding.  Upon roll call, the following were present: Mayor Garrett (via phone), Ward 1 Council 
Kennedy, Ward 2 Council Behrens, Ward 3 Council McDermott, Ward 4 Council Sarsfield (via phone), 
Ward 5 Council Halder, At Large Council Brink, City Administrator Lund, City Engineer Sturm, Acting City 
Clerk Tupper.  Absent:  None. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Otte gave notice of an amended consent agenda prior to the start of the meeting, 
removing the minutes of the May 29, 2024, city council meeting and adding tree trimmer permit for 
Legacy Brothers LLC. 
 
Motion by Kennedy; second by McDermott to approve amended agenda. All ayes. Motion carried. 
 
Those present recited the Pledge of Allegiance.                        
 
Motion by Brink; second by Behrens to approve Consent Agenda as follows: Minutes of the May 15, 
2024 city council meeting, Class C Retail Alcohol License – The Venue, Class C Retail Alcohol License – 
Fundays Movies & Events, Class C Retail Alcohol License with outdoor service area and living quarters - 
Atlantic Golf & Country Club, Class E Retail Alcohol License – Casey’s #2610 (East), Tree Trimmer Permit 
– Prolawn Environmental Services LLC, Cigarette Permits: Dollar General, Green Leaf Tobacco & Vapor, 
Hy Vee Wine & Spirits, Atlantic Hy Vee, Murphy USA, Fareway, Casey’s #2610 (East), Casey’s #2365 
(West), Casey’s #3035 (Central), Fog Zone; Weresh CDBG Upper Story Payment - $12,514.00, Whitney 
Development Corp. Upper Story Conversion - $45,148.00, and bills totaling $67,114.27.  All ayes.  
Motion carried.   
 
Public Forum – None. 
 
Discussion was held between Vision Atlantic and the City Council on proposal to utilize Tax Increment 
Financing (TIF) for the Camblin Hills Development and Child Development Center. 
 
Motion by McDermott; second by Kennedy to Approve the Low-to-Moderate -Income (LMI) Reduction 
Waiver Request to the Iowa Economic Development Authority (IEDA), on behalf of Vision Atlantic and 
the Proposed Camblin Hills Addition Residential Development. Ayes: McDermott, Sarsfield, Halder, 
Brink, Otte, Kennedy, Behrens. Nays: None. Motion carried. 
 
Motion by Brink; second by Behrens to approve the Order to Approve Professional Services with Snyder 
& Associates for Downtown Treescape Improvement Master Plan Including Options, Public Engagement, 
and Budget Estimates. All ayes. Motion carried. 
 
Motion by McDermott; second by Halder to approve the Order to Set the Date of the Public Hearing to 
Amend the FY 2024 Budget for June 19, 2024, at 5:30 p.m. in the City of Atlantic, City Council Chambers. 
Ayes: McDermott, Sarsfield, Halder, Brink, Otte, Kennedy, Behrens. Nays: None. Motion carried. 
 



Motion by McDermott; second by Halder to approve Resolution #36-24 “SETTING THE DATES FOR THE 
FOURTH OF JULY FIREWORKS USE.” Dates and times set are July 3rd, 4th ,5th, & 6th. Noon until 11:00 p.m. 
Ayes: Otte, Kennedy, Behrens, McDermott, Sarsfield, Halder. Nays: Brink. Motion carried. 
 
Motion by Kennedy; second by Halder to approve Resolution #37-24 “ADOPTING A CONFLICT-OF-
INTEREST POLICY AND RELATED FORMS DURING THE PERFORMANCE OF THE IOWA ENERGY EFFICIENCY 
AND CONSERVATION BLOCK GRANT.” Ayes: Behrens, McDermott, Sarsfield, Halder, Brink, Otte, 
Kennedy. Nays. None. Motion carried. 
 
Motion by Brink; second by Behrens to approve the order to Approve Administrative Assistance 
Contract with the Southwest Iowa Planning Council (SWIPCO) for the Administration of the Iowa Energy 
Efficiency and Conservation Block Grant. All ayes. Motion carried. 
 
Motion by McDermott; second by Kennedy to approve the order to Approve Administrative Assistance 
Contract with the Southwest Iowa Planning Council (SWIPCO) for the Administration of the Community 
Development Block Grant #24-WS—019. All ayes. Motion carried. 
 
Administrator’s Report: City Administrator Lund reported that the ARPA report is finished; the city did 
not receive a TAP grant for proposed trail on 22nd street project; He has been in communication with 
Vision Atlantic; and catching up on a backlog of work. 
 
City Council Reports 
Otte- Personnel & Finance; McDermott- Library; Kennedy- Parks & Recreation; Behrens- Fire 
Department; Halder- Landfill; Brink- CADCO 
 
Motion by Behrens; second by Kennedy to adjourn at 6:34 p.m.  All ayes.  Motion carried. 
 
 
 

 ________________________________ 
      Grace N. Garrett, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: ______________________________ 
 Rich Tupper, Acting City Clerk 









 
Bills 

 
 
 
 















 
10 

 
 
 
 



REVENUES & OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Total Budget
as Certified

or Last Amended

Current
Amendment

Total Budget After
Current Amendment

Taxes Levied on Property 1 3,905,324 0 3,905,324

Less: Uncollected Delinquent Taxes - Levy Year 2 0 0 0

Net Current Property Tax 3 3,905,324 0 3,905,324

Delinquent Property Tax Revenue 4 0 0 0

TIF Revenues 5 158,143 0 158,143

Other City Taxes 6 121,186 0 121,186

Licenses & Permits 7 93,930 0 93,930

Use of Money & Property 8 241,830 0 241,830

Intergovernmental 9 816,072 700,000 1,516,072

Charges for Service 10 2,657,849 95,000 2,752,849

Special Assessments 11 300 0 300

Miscellaneous 12 525,142 0 525,142

Other Financing Sources 13 90,000 0 90,000

Transfers In 14 3,452,168 0 3,452,168

Total Revenues & Other Sources 15 12,061,944 795,000 12,856,944

EXPENDITURES & OTHER FINANCING USES

Public Safety 16 2,814,542 0 2,814,542

Public Works 17 2,062,875 0 2,062,875

Health and Social Services 18 9,200 0 9,200

Culture and Recreation 19 1,313,251 0 1,313,251

Community and Economic Development 20 401,798 0 401,798

General Government 21 825,128 0 825,128

Debt Service 22 1,533,213 0 1,533,213

Capital Projects 23 730,503 700,000 1,430,503

Total Government Activities Expenditures 24 9,690,510 700,000 10,390,510

Business Type/Enterprise 25 1,558,331 95,000 1,653,331

Total Gov Activities & Business Expenditures 26 11,248,841 795,000 12,043,841

Transfers Out 27 3,452,168 0 3,452,168

Total Expenditures/Transfers Out 28 14,701,009 795,000 15,496,009

Excess Revenues & Other Sources Over
(Under) Expenditures/Transfers Out 29 -2,639,065 0 -2,639,065

Beginning Fund Balance July 1, 2023 30 10,330,784 -397,863 9,932,921

Ending Fund Balance June 30, 2024 31 7,691,719 -397,863 7,293,856

Explanation of Changes: Additional grants were received in FY23 which will cover the additional capital projects expenditures  Storm Water utility budget
expenditures and revenues were inadvertently left out of the original FY23 budget that was certified.  The estimated beginning balance for July 1, 2023 when
the budget was certified in the spring of 2023 was $10,330,784.  The actual FY23 ending balance (therefore the FY24 beginning balance) was $9,932,921.
This amendment makes that adjustment.

06/19/2024

City Clerk/Administrator Signature of Certification Adopted On Mayor Signature of Certification

CITY BUDGET AMENDMENT AND CERTIFICATION RESOLUTION - FY 2024 - AMENDMENT # 1

To the Auditor of CASS County, Iowa:

The City Council of ATLANTIC in said County/Counties met on 06/19/2024 05:30 PM, at the place and hour set in the notice, a copy of which accompanies
this certificate and is certified as to publication. Upon taking up the proposed amendment, it was considered and taxpayers were heard for and against the
amendment.

The Council, after hearing all taxpayers wishing to be heard and considering the statements made by them, gave final consideration to the proposed
amendment(s) to the budget and modifications proposed at the hearing, if any. Thereupon, the following resolution was introduced.

RESOLUTION No. 38-24

A RESOLUTION AMENDING THE CURRENT BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 2024

(AS LAST CERTIFIED OR AMENDED ON 04/19/2023)

Be it Resolved by the Council of City of ATLANTIC

Section 1. Following notice published/posted 06/04/2024 and the public hearing held 06/19/2024 05:30 PM the current budget (as previously amended) is
amended as set out herein and in the detail by fund type and activity that supports this resolution which was considered at the hearing:

06/17/2024 03:56 PM Page 1 of 1



 
11 

 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION #       39 -24 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE TRANSFER OF FUNDS FOR THE SECOND HALF 
OF FISCAL YEAR 2023-2024 

 
 WHEREAS, on April 19, 2023 the City Council of the City of Atlantic, Iowa, approved the Fiscal 
Year 2023-2024 budget, including transfers between funds; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Clerk makes these budgeted transfers on a quarterly basis; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Local Option Sales Tax received monthly by the city is allocated to various funds 
as approved by resolution of the City Council also on a quarterly basis; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Atlantic’s city auditors have recommended that these transfers be 
approved by the City Council by resolution each quarter;  
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Atlantic, Iowa that the 
following budgeted transfers be approved for the second quarter of fiscal year 2023-2024: 
 
TRANSFERRED FROM FUND  TRANSFERRED TO FUND  AMOUNT 
 
Road Use    General     $33,946.50 
Storm Water    General     $14,803.00 
LOST Progress    General     $21,988.50 
Sewer Use    General     $29,452.50 
Hotel/Motel Tax   General     $1,472.32 
YMCA Improvement Reserve  General     $1,528.00 
LOST Streets    General     $2,809.50 
Park Improvement Reserve  General     $50,615.00 
American Rescue Plan   General     $69,454.62 
 
Road Use Tax    Debt Service    $12,500.00 
Storm Water    Debt Service    $42,500.00 
LOST Progress    Debt Service    $19,500.00 
Park Improvement Reserve  Debt Service    $11,434.00 
LOST Streets    Debt Service    $112,525.00 
SW TIF     Debt Service    $13,534.50 
SE Urban Renewal   Debt Service    $33,645.00 
 
Lost Streets    2024-2026 CIP    $50,000.00 
 
LOST Streets    2027-2030 CIP    $25,000.00 
 
Road Use    Benefits Cash Out   $1,583.00 
 
Road Use    Street Equipment Reserve  $32,500.00 
 
 



TRANSFERRED FROM FUND  TRANSFERRED TO FUND  AMOUNT 
 
LOST Streets    Street Equipment Reserve  $22,500.00 
 
Sewer     Sewer Equipment Reserve  $62,500.00 
Sewer     Sewer Benefits Cash Out  $3,710.00 
 
Storm Water    Storm Water Cap Projects  $22,500.00 
 
LOST Streets    Sewer     $18,684.00 
 
Hotel/Motel Tax   Rec Improvement Reserve  $15,895.62 
 
LOST Progress    Beautification    $25,000.00 
 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the following transfers be made to allocate the Local Option 

Sales Tax received in the second quarter of fiscal year 2023-2024: 
 

TRANSFERRED FROM FUND  TRANSFERRED TO FUND  AMOUNT 

LOST Revenue    LOST Progress    $147,382.57 
LOST Revenue    LOST Streets    $168,437.22 
LOST Revenue    Rec Improvement Reserve  $105,273.26  
 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED by the City Council of the City of Atlantic this 19h day of June 2024. 
        
 

______________________________ 
       Grace N. Garrett, Mayor 
ATTEST:  
 
________________________ 
Rich Tupper, Acting City Clerk 



 
12 

 
 
 
 



-1- 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 40-24 
 

Resolution authorizing and approving a Loan Agreement and providing for 
the issuance of a $90,000 General Obligation Solid Waste Management Note 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Atlantic (the “City”), in Cass County, State of Iowa, pursuant to 

the provisions of Section 384.24A of the Code of Iowa, heretofore proposed to enter into a loan 
agreement (the “Loan Agreement”) and to borrow money thereunder in a principal amount not to 
exceed $90,000 for the purpose of paying the costs, to that extent, of funding the construction of 
solid waste disposal facilities and improvements (the “Project”), and pursuant to law and duly 
published notice of the proposed action has held a hearing thereon on April 5, 2023; and 

WHEREAS, on April 5, 2023 the City Council adopted a resolution (the “Prelevy 
Resolution”) anticipating the future authorization of the Loan Agreement and providing for the 
levy of taxes to pay principal thereunder, and said taxes have been collected in the 2023-2024 
fiscal year of the City; and 

WHEREAS, it is necessary at this time to authorize and approve the Loan Agreement and 
to make provision for the issuance of the General Obligation Solid Waste Management Note (the 
“Note”) in evidence of the obligation of the City under the Loan Agreement; 

NOW, THEREFORE, Be It Resolved by the City Council of the City of Atlantic, Iowa, as 
follows: 

Section 1. The City hereby determines to enter into the Loan Agreement with First 
Whitney Bank & Trust, Atlantic, Iowa (the “Purchaser”), providing for a loan to the City in the 
principal amount of $90,000 for the purpose or purposes set forth in the preamble hereof. 

The Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized and directed to sign the Loan Agreement 
on behalf of the City, and the Loan Agreement is hereby approved. 

Section 2. The Note is hereby authorized to be issued in the principal amount of 
$90,000, shall be dated as of the date of its delivery to the Purchaser (such date is anticipated to be 
June 26, 2024) and shall be payable in the manner hereinafter specified. 

The City Clerk is hereby designated as the registrar and paying agent for the Note and may 
be hereinafter referred to as the “Registrar” or the “Paying Agent.” 

Principal of the Note shall not bear interest.  All of the principal of the Note shall be payable 
directly to the Purchaser on June 26, 2024. 

The Note shall be executed on behalf of the City with the official manual or facsimile 
signature of the Mayor and attested with the official manual or facsimile signature of the City 
Clerk and shall be a fully registered Note without interest coupons.  In case any officer whose 
signature or the facsimile of whose signature appears on the Note shall cease to be such officer 
before the delivery of the Note, such signature or such facsimile signature shall nevertheless be 
valid and sufficient for all purposes, the same as if such officer had remained in office until 
delivery. 



-2- 
 

The Note shall be fully registered as to principal and interest in the name of the owner on 
the registration books of the City kept by the Registrar, and after such registration, payment of the 
principal thereof and interest thereon shall be made only to the registered owner or its legal 
representatives or assigns.  The Note shall be transferable only upon the registration books of the 
City upon presentation to the Registrar, together with either a written instrument of transfer 
satisfactory to the Registrar or the assignment form thereon completed and duly executed by the 
registered owner or the duly authorized attorney for such registered owner. 

The record and identity of any owners of the Note shall be kept confidential as provided 
by Section 22.7 of the Code of Iowa. 

Section 3. The Note shall be in substantially the following form: 

(Form of Note) 
 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
STATE OF IOWA CASS COUNTY 

CITY OF ATLANTIC 

GENERAL OBLIGATION SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT NOTE 

No. 1 $90,000 

 RATE  MATURITY DATE NOTE DATE 

 0%  June 26, 2024 June 26, 2024 

The City of Atlantic (the “City”), in Cass County, State of Iowa, for value received, promises to 
pay in the manner hereinafter provided to 

First Whitney Bank & Trust 
Atlantic, Iowa 

or registered assigns (the “Purchaser”), the principal sum of NINETY THOUSAND DOLLARS. 

Principal of this Note shall not bear interest.  All of the principal of this Note shall be payable 
directly to the Purchaser on June 26, 2024.  

This Note is issued by the City to evidence its obligation under a certain Loan Agreement, dated as 
of the date hereof (the “Loan Agreement”) entered into by the City for the purpose of funding the 
construction of solid waste disposal facilities and improvements. 

This Note is issued pursuant to and in strict compliance with the provisions of Chapter 76 and 
Chapter 384 of the Code of Iowa, 2023, and all other laws amendatory thereof and supplemental thereto, 
and in conformity with a resolution of the City Council authorizing and approving the Loan Agreement and 
providing for the issuance and securing the payment of this Note (the “Resolution”), and reference is hereby 
made to the Resolution and the Loan Agreement for a more complete statement as to the source of payment 
of this Note and the rights of the Holder of this Note. 

This Note is fully negotiable but shall be fully registered as to both principal and interest in the 
name of the owner on the books of the City in the office of the Registrar, after which no transfer shall be 



-3- 
 

valid unless made on said books and then only upon presentation of this Note to the Registrar, together with 
either a written instrument of transfer satisfactory to the Registrar or the assignment form hereon completed 
and duly executed by the registered owner or the duly authorized attorney for such registered owner. 

The City, the Registrar and the Paying Agent may deem and treat the registered owner hereof as 
the absolute owner for the purpose of receiving payment of or on account of principal hereof, premium, if 
any, and interest due hereon and for all other purposes, and the City, the Registrar and the Paying Agent 
shall not be affected by any notice to the contrary. 

And It Is Hereby Certified and Recited that all acts, conditions and things required by the laws and 
Constitution of the State of Iowa, to exist, to be had, to be done or to be performed precedent to and in the 
issue of this Note were and have been properly existent, had, done and performed in regular and due form 
and time; that provision has been made for the levy of a sufficient continuing annual tax on all the taxable 
property within the City for the payment of the principal of this Note as the same will respectively become 
due; that the faith, credit, revenues and resources and that the total indebtedness of the City, including this 
Note, does not exceed any constitutional or statutory limitations. 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, the City of Atlantic, Iowa, by its City Council, has caused this Note 
to be executed by its Mayor and attested by its City Clerk, on June 26, 2024. 

CITY OF ATLANTIC, IOWA 

By (DO NOT SIGN)  
 Mayor 

Attest: 

 (DO NOT SIGN)  
City Clerk 

ABBREVIATIONS 

The following abbreviations, when used in this Note, shall be construed as though they were written 
out in full according to applicable laws or regulations: 

TEN COM  - as tenants in common UTMA  
    (Custodian) 
TEN ENT - as tenants by the entireties As Custodian for  
JT TEN - as joint tenants with  

right of survivorship and  
not as tenants in common 

 (Minor) 
under Uniform Transfers to Minors Act 

 
 (State) 

Additional abbreviations may also be used though not in the list above. 

 
ASSIGNMENT 

For valuable consideration, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, the undersigned assigns this 
Note to 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
(Please print or type name and address of Assignee) 



-4- 
 

  
PLEASE INSERT SOCIAL SECURITY OR OTHER 
IDENTIFYING NUMBER OF ASSIGNEE 

and does hereby irrevocably appoint _______________________________________________, Attorney, 
to transfer this Note on the books kept for registration thereof with full power of substitution. 

Dated:    

Signature guaranteed: 

  
  
  

  
NOTICE:  The signature to this Assignment must 
correspond with the name of the registered owner 
as it appears on this Note in every particular, 
without alteration or enlargement or any change 
whatever. 

 

Section 4. The Note shall be executed as herein provided as soon after the adoption of 
this resolution as may be possible and thereupon shall be delivered to the Registrar for registration 
and delivery to the Purchaser on June 26, 2024, upon receipt of the loan proceeds, and all action 
heretofore taken in connection with the Loan Agreement is hereby ratified and confirmed in all 
respects. 

Section 5. The City hereby pledges the debt service property taxes received pursuant 
to the Prelevy Resolution for the full and prompt payment of the principal of the Note. 

Section 6. All resolutions or parts thereof in conflict herewith are hereby repealed to 
the extent of such conflict. 

Section 7. This resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon it approval 
and adoption, as provided by law. 

Passed and approved on June 19, 2024 

  
Mayor 

Attest: 

  
City Clerk 
 



 
13 

 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 41-24 
 

AMMENDING SERIES 400 CODE 405 LEAVES OF ABSENCE OF THE 
PERSONNEL HANDBOOK TO ADD GRANDCHILDREN UNDER 

FUNERAL LEAVE 
 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Atlantic provides its employees with a generous amount of paid 

time off; and; 
 
 

WHEREAS, there may be occasions when an employee needs time off to cover an tragedy 
within their family where vacation, personal holidays or other paid time off is inappropriate; and; 
 
 

WHEREAS, funeral leave under the City’s Personnel Policy includes many familial 
connections, it unintentionally has excluded grandchildren from the list; and; 
 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Atlantic, 
that the word “grandchild” is hereby added to the Personnel Handbook under Funeral Leave of 
Series 400 Code 405 “Leaves of Absence” and becomes effective on May 1, 2024.  
 
 

Passed and approved this 19th day of June 2024. 
 
 
 
 

      
Grace N. Garrett, Mayor 

 
 
 
 
ATTEST:                                
               Barb Barrick, City Clerk              
 
 
 
 
 



 
14 

 
 
 
 



CITY OF ATLANTIC 
RESOLUTION #42-24 

 
RESOLUTION ADOPTING A PROCUREMENT POLICY FOR STATE AND/OR 

FEDERAL GOVERNMENT ADMINISTRATON OF GRANTS 
 
 

WHEREAS: The Mayor and City Council of the City of Atlantic desire to improve the 
community using whatever resources are available at the state and/or federal level; and, 
 
 
WHEREAS: The City of Atlantic is currently participating in a variety of grants administered 
through the State of Iowa or a Federal Agency; and, 
 
 
WHEREAS: The City of Atlantic must adopt certain policies and abide by certain rules and 
laws during the performance of these projects. 
 
 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED 
BY THE 

ATLANTIC CITY COUNCIL  
 
 

THAT:  The City of Atlantic hereby adopts the following policies and statements, and 
authorizes and directs the Mayor to sign the same: 
 
 

• City of Atlantic – Procurement Policy for State and/or Federal Government 
Administration of Grants. 

 
 
Adopted this 19th day of June 2024. 
 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Grace Garrett, Mayor 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
____________________________   
Rich Tupper, Acting City Clerk 
 



1 
 

City of Atlantic  
Procurement Policy for State 
and/or Federal Government 

Administration of Grants 
 

Definitions 
• 2 CFR Part 200 - Establishes uniform administrative requirements, cost principles, and audit 

requirements for Federal awards to non-federal entities.  
o Found here: https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-2/subtitle-A/chapter-II/part-200?toc=1 

• Conflict of interest -a situation in which a person is in a position to derive personal benefit from 
actions or decisions made in their official capacity. 

• Noncompetitive procurement - Purchase of property, goods, and/or services, where a competitive 
method of procurement is not utilized. Noncompetitive procurement can only be awarded if one or 
more of the situations detailed under Section 4(C)(i) apply. 

• Procurement - the act of obtaining or purchasing goods or services, typically for business purposes. 
 
1. Introduction and Purpose. 
 

In keeping with its commitment to maintain the highest standards of conduct and ethics, City of 
Atlantic has adopted this Procurement Policy (the “Policy”) to ensure that goods and services purchased 
by City staff or designees are obtained in a cost-effective manner and in compliance with applicable 
federal and state laws.  
 

The acquisition processes described in this Policy apply to all government-funded purchases 
made by City staff or designee’s employees, directors, officers, or agents (together, “City staff or 
designees’ purchasers”). Purchases may also be subject to prior funding source approval and additional 
requirements imposed by grants or contracts. Program directors are responsible for reviewing any such 
additional requirements and ensuring that contractors and vendors perform in accordance with the 
terms, conditions, and specifications of their contracts or purchase orders. 
 
2. Code of Conduct.  
 

A. City staff or designees’ purchasers shall not participate in the selection, award, or 
administration of a contract if they have a real or apparent conflict of interest. Such a 
conflict arises when: 

 
i. The City staff or designees’’ purchaser, any immediate family member (spouse, child, 

parent, parent-in-law, sibling, or sibling-in-law) partner, or an organization that 
employs, or is about to employ, any of the above has a direct or indirect financial or 
other interest in or will receive a tangible personal benefit from a firm or individual 
considered for the contract award.  

 
ii. An “organizational conflict of interest” is created because of a relationship City staff 

or designees’ has with a parent, affiliate, or subsidiary organization that is involved in 
the transaction such that City staff or designees’ is or appears to be unable to be 
impartial in conducting a procurement action involving the related organization.  



2  

 
B. City staff or designees’ purchasers shall not solicit or accept gifts, money, gratuities, favors, 

or anything of monetary value, except unsolicited items or services of nominal value (no 
greater than $20) from vendors, prospective vendors, parties to subcontracts, or any other 
person or entity that receives, or may receive, compensation for providing goods or 
performing services for City staff or designees.  

 
C. All City staff or designees’ purchasers shall review and comply with the City staff or 

designee’s procedures for disclosing, reviewing, and addressing actual and potential 
conflicts of interest.  

 
3. Procurement Requirements and Considerations.  
 

A. Competition. All procurements shall be conducted in a manner that provides, to the 
maximum extent practical, full, and open competition. Procurements shall: 

 
i. Avoid noncompetitive practices that may restrict or eliminate competition, including 

but not limited to: 
a. Unreasonable qualification requirements. 
b. Unnecessary experience and excessive bonding requirements. 
c. Noncompetitive pricing practices between firms or affiliated companies. 
d. Noncompetitive contracts to consultants on retainer contracts. 
e. Organizational conflicts of interest. 
f. Specifying “brand name” only instead of allowing “an equal” product. 
g. Arbitrary actions.  

 
ii. Not intentionally split a single purchase into two or more separate purchases to avoid 

dollar thresholds that require more formal procurement methods.  
 

iii. Exclude contractors that develop or draft specifications, requirements, statements of 
work, or invitations for bids or requests for a proposal from competing for such 
procurement.  

 
iv. Include in any prequalified list an adequate number of current, qualified vendors, 

firms, or products.  
 

v. Not preclude potential bidders from qualifying during the solicitation period.  
 

vi. Not use any geographic preferences (state, local or tribal) in the evaluation of bids or 
proposals, except where expressly mandated or encouraged by applicable federal 
statutes.  

 
B. Profit. For noncompetitive procurements (or when cost analysis is used), profit must be 

negotiated as a separate element of the procurement price. 
 

i. To establish a fair and reasonable profit, consider: complexity of work performed, risk 
borne by contractor, contractor’s investment, amount of subcontracting, quality of 
contractor’s record and past performance, and industry profit rates in surrounding 
geographical area for similar work.  



3  

 
ii. City staff or designees may not use either the cost plus a percentage of cost, or 

percentage of construction cost methods of contracting.  
 

C. Minority Owned, Women Owned, and Small Business Vendors. City staff or designees is 
committed to taking all necessary affirmative steps to assure that minority business, 
women’s business enterprises and labor surplus area firms (“MWSB Vendors”) are used 
whenever possible. Such steps include: 

 
i. Placing qualified MWSB Vendors on solicitation lists; 
 
ii. Soliciting MWSB Vendors whenever they are potential sources; 
 
iii. Dividing total requirements, when economically feasible, into smaller tasks or 

quantities to permit maximum participation by MWSB Vendors; 
 
iv. Establishing delivery schedules, where requirement permits, which encourage 

participation by MWSB Vendors; 
 
v. Using services and assistance, as appropriate, of such organizations as Small Business 

Administration and the Minority Business Development Agency of the Department of 
Commerce; and 

 
vi. Requiring the prime contractor, if subcontracts used, to take affirmative steps listed 

in paragraphs (i) through (v) of this section.  
 

D. Minimum Bonding Requirements. For construction or facility improvement contracts or 
subcontracts exceeding the Simple Acquisition Threshold ($250,000), the requirements for 
bonding shall, at a minimum, be as follows: 

 
i. A bid guarantee from each bidder is equivalent to 5% of the bid price.  
 
ii. A performance bond on the part of the contractor is for 100% of the contract price.  
 
iii. A payment bond on the part of the contractor is for 100% of the contract price.  
 
iv. All bonds required in this section are obtained from companies holding certificates of 

authority as acceptable sureties pursuant to the surety requirements for companies 
doing business with the United States (31 CFR Part 223).  

 
E. Solicitations. All solicitations shall incorporate a clear and accurate description of the 

technical requirements for products or services to be procured. Descriptions: 
 

i. Must not contain features which unduly restrict competition. 
 
ii. May include a statement of the qualitative nature of the material, product, or service 

to be procured. 
 



4  

iii. When necessary, must set forth minimum essential characteristics and standards 
necessary to satisfy its intended use. 

 
iv. Must avoid detailed product specifications if possible. 
 
v. May use a “brand name or equivalent” description to define performance or other 

salient requirements when impractical or uneconomical to make a clear and accurate 
description of technical requirements. Specific named brand features required to be 
met must be clearly stated. 

 
vi. Identify all requirements which offerors must fulfill and all other factors to be used in 

evaluating bids and proposals.  
 

F. Considerations. City staff or designees’ purchasers should consider taking the following 
actions when procuring goods and services: 

 
i. Conduct a lease vs. purchase analysis, when appropriate, including for property and 

large equipment.  
 
ii. Consolidate or break out procurements to obtain a more economical purchase, if 

possible.  
 
iii. Use value engineering clauses to offer reasonable opportunities for cost reductions in 

construction contracts for projects of sufficient size.  
 
iv. Use time and materials contracts only if no other contract is suitable and the contract 

includes a ceiling price that the contractor exceeds at their own risk. If such contract 
is negotiated and awarded, City staff or designees must assert a high degree of 
oversight to obtain reasonable assurance that contractor using efficient methods and 
effective cost controls.  

 
4. Procurement Methods. 
 

A. All procurements.  All procurements made under this policy shall: 
 

i. Be necessary, at a reasonable cost, documented, not prohibited by law or the 
applicable funding source, and made in accordance with this Policy.  

 
ii. Avoid acquiring unnecessary or duplicative items.  
 
iii. Engage responsible vendors who possess the ability to perform successfully under the 

terms and conditions of a proposed procurement. City staff or designees’ purchasers 
shall consider: vendor integrity and qualifications, public policy compliance, past 
performance record, financial and technical resources, key personnel, and other 
factors that will provide the best overall value and are deemed to serve the best 
interests of City staff or designees’.  

 



5  

B. Standard Methods. For transactions meeting the specifications set forth in Appendix 1, City 
staff or designees’ purchasers shall follow the applicable procurement method set forth 
therein. 

 
C. Exceptions to Standard Methods. 

 

i. Noncompetitive Procurement. Procurement by solicitation of a proposal from a single 
source may only be used if at least one of the following apply and is adequately 
documented: 
a. The acquisition of property or services, the aggregate dollar amount of which 

does not exceed the micro-purchase threshold (refer to Appendix I); 
b. Item is only available from a single source; 
c. Public exigency or emergency will not permit any delay; 
d. Federal awarding agency or pass-through expressly authorizes a 

noncompetitive procurement in response to a City staff or designees’ request; 
or 

e. After soliciting a number of sources, competition is determined inadequate.  
 
5. Procurement Procedures. See Appendix 2 for City staff or designees’ Procurement Procedures.  
 
6. Contract Provisions. All City staff or designees’’ procurement contracts shall contain the 
applicable contract provisions contained in Appendix II to 2 CFR Part 200 – Contract Provisions for Non-
Federal Entity. 
 
7. Documentation. 
 

A. Debarment. City staff or designees’ shall either: 
 

i. Confirm and document that the vendor is not excluded from doing business with the 
federal government (see www.sam.gov/SAM/) before entering into a contract; or 

 

ii. Obtain a signed Debarment Certificate substantially in the form of Appendix 3. 
 

B. Lobbying Certificate. City staff or designees shall obtain signed Lobbying Certificates 
substantially in the form of Appendix 4 for procurements > $100,000.  

 
C. Records. City staff or designees shall maintain records sufficient to detail history of each 

procurement transaction. These records must include, but are not limited to: 
 

i. A description and supporting documentation showing rationale for procurement 
method (e.g., cost estimates); 

 
ii. Selection of contract type; 
 
iii. Written price or rate quotations (such as catalog price, online price, email or written 

quote), if applicable; 
 
iv. Copies of advertisements, requests for proposals, bid sheets or bid proposal packets; 
 

http://www.sam.gov/SAM/


6  

v. Reasons for vendor selection or rejection, including relevant panel or committee 
records, rejection letters and award letter; and 

  
vi. The basis for the contract price.  

 
8. Compliance with this Policy. Program directors shall maintain oversight to ensure that 
contractors and vendors perform in accordance with the terms, conditions, and specifications of contracts 
or purchase orders. Violations of this policy may result in disciplinary action, up to and including 
termination.  
 
 
 



7  

Appendix 1 
Standard Methods of Procurement 

 
 

Type Threshold Method 

Micro-purchase < $10,000 - Price must be reasonable 

- Periodically distribute purchases equitably among 
qualified vendors 

Small Purchase $10,000.01 < $250,000 - Obtain written price or rate quotations from at least two 
qualified vendors 

- Example documentation: catalog price, online price, email, 
or written quote 

Sealed Bids > $250,000 Pre-Solicitation 
- Conduct cost or price analysis 

Solicitation 
- Publicly advertise invitation for bids 

- Include specifications or information sufficient for 
bidders to respond 

- Provide adequate time to respond 

- Solicit a sufficient number of bids 

Bid Review/Selection 

- Open bids at time and place set forth in invite 

- Award to lowest responsive and responsible bidder 

- May reject bids for sound, documented reason 

- Award written, fixed price contract 

Competitive Proposals > $250,000 Pre-Solicitation 
- Conduct cost or price analysis 

Solicitation 
- Publicly advertise request for proposals 

- Identify all evaluation factors and their relative 
importance 

- Solicit bids from at least two vendors 

Proposal Review/Selection Committee as defined by Appendix 2 
- Consider all proposals to maximum extent practical 

- Use written method to conduct technical 
evaluations of the proposals 

- Award contract to bidder with most advantageous 
proposal, considering price and other factors as defined 
by Appendix 5 rubric 

- Award fixed price or cost-reimbursement contract 



8  

Appendix 2 
City staff or designees’  Procurement Procedures 

 
A. New Contract/Purchase Order 

1. City staff or designee’s purchaser determines the applicable and appropriate procurement 
method. 

a. If micro-purchase or small purchase methods are appropriate, conduct procurement as 
outlined in the Policy and retain appropriate documentation of quotes and vendor 
selection, etc. If prior approval is required for the purchase, refer to step 2. 

b. If sealed or competitive bid methods are required, complete steps 2 through 5. 

2. If funding source approval is required, work with CFO or designee to obtain. Depending on the 
procurement method used, City staff or designee’s purchaser completes Bid Form and submits 
to the City Administrator ] as part of the approval process. 

3. City staff or designees’ purchaser, in consultation with accounting and legal departments as 
needed, formalizes the bid packet and submits it to the City Coordinator to post to City staff or 
designees’ [website] for prospective vendors to access after completing a short registration. 

4. Depending on company thresholds or minimum requirements set for approval, City staff or 
designee’s purchaser either makes the procurement decision or presents all bid responses to 
the appropriate committee or personnel. 

5. If a purchasing committee is involved, it makes a recommendation on awarding the bid to the 
CFO. Bid award is reviewed and a final decision made by the CFO. 

 



9  

Appendix 3 
Certification Regarding Contract Provisions for Non-Federal Entity Contracts Under Federal Awards  

Appendix II of 2 CFR Part 200 
 
In addition to other provisions required by the Federal agency or non-Federal entity, all contracts made by 
the non-Federal entity under the Federal award must contain provisions covering the following, as 
applicable.  
 
(A) Contracts for more than the simplified acquisition threshold, which is the inflation adjusted amount 
determined by the Civilian Agency Acquisition Council and the Defense Acquisition Regulations Council 
(Councils) as authorized by 41 U.S.C. 1908, must address administrative, contractual, or legal remedies in 
instances where contractors violate or breach contract terms, and provide for such sanctions and penalties 
as appropriate.  
 
(B) All contracts in excess of $10,000 must address termination for cause and for convenience by the non-
Federal entity including the manner by which it will be effected and the basis for settlement.  
 
(C) Equal Employment Opportunity. Except as otherwise provided under 41 CFR Part 60, all contracts that 
meet the definition of “federally assisted construction contract” in 41 CFR Part 60-1.3 must include the 
equal opportunity clause provided under 41 CFR 60-1.4(b), in accordance with Executive Order 11246, 
“Equal Employment Opportunity” (30 FR 12319, 12935, 3 CFR Part, 1964-1965 Comp., p. 339), as amended 
by Executive Order 11375, “Amending Executive Order 11246 Relating to Equal Employment Opportunity,” 
and implementing regulations at 41 CFR part 60, “Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs, Equal 
Employment Opportunity, Department of Labor.”  
 
(D) Davis-Bacon Act, as amended (40 U.S.C. 3141-3148). When required by Federal program legislation, all 
prime construction contracts in excess of $2,000 awarded by non-Federal entities must include a provision 
for compliance with the Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. 3141-3144, and 3146-3148) as supplemented by 
Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 5, “Labor Standards Provisions Applicable to Contracts 
Covering Federally Financed and Assisted Construction”). In accordance with the statute, contractors must 
be required to pay wages to laborers and mechanics at a rate not less than the prevailing wages specified 
in a wage determination made by the Secretary of Labor. In addition, contractors must be required to pay 
wages not less than once a week. The non-Federal entity must place a copy of the current prevailing wage 
determination issued by the Department of Labor in each solicitation. The decision to award a contract or 
subcontract must be conditioned upon the acceptance of the wage determination. The non-Federal entity 
must report all suspected or reported violations to the Federal awarding agency. The contracts must also 
include a provision for compliance with the Copeland “Anti-Kickback” Act (40 U.S.C. 3145), as 
supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 3, “Contractors and Subcontractors on 
Public Building or Public Work Financed in Whole or in Part by Loans or Grants from the United States”). 
The Act provides that each contractor or subrecipient must be prohibited from inducing, by any means, 
any person employed in the construction, completion, or repair of public work, to give up any part of the 
compensation to which he or she is otherwise entitled. The non-Federal entity must report all suspected 
or reported violations to the Federal awarding agency.  
 
(E) Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. 3701-3708). Where applicable, all contracts 
awarded by the non-Federal entity in excess of $100,000 that involve the employment of mechanics or 
laborers must include a provision for compliance with 40 U.S.C. 3702 and 3704, as supplemented by 
Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 5). Under 40 U.S.C. 3702 of the Act, each contractor must be 



10  

required to compute the wages of every mechanic and laborer on the basis of a standard work week of 
40 hours. Work in excess of the standard work week is permissible provided that the worker is 
compensated at a rate of not less than one and a half times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in 
excess of 40 hours in the work week. The requirements of 40 U.S.C. 3704 are applicable to construction 
work and provide that no laborer or mechanic must be required to work in surroundings or under working 
conditions which are unsanitary, hazardous or dangerous. These requirements do not apply to the 
purchases of supplies or materials or articles ordinarily available on the open market, or contracts for 
transportation or transmission of intelligence.  
 
(F) Rights to Inventions Made Under a Contract or Agreement. If the Federal award meets the definition of 
“funding agreement” under 37 CFR § 401.2 (a) and the recipient or subrecipient wishes to enter into a 
contract with a small business firm or nonprofit organization regarding the substitution of parties, 
assignment or performance of experimental, developmental, or research work under that “funding 
agreement,” the recipient or subrecipient must comply with the requirements of 37 CFR Part 401, “Rights 
to Inventions Made by Nonprofit Organizations and Small Business Firms Under Government Grants, 
Contracts and Cooperative Agreements,” and any implementing regulations issued by the awarding 
agency.  
 
(G) Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 7401-7671q.) and the Federal Water Pollution Control Act (33 U.S.C. 1251-
1387), as amended - Contracts and subgrants of amounts in excess of $150,000 must contain a provision 
that requires the non-Federal award to agree to comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations 
issued pursuant to the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 7401-7671q) and the Federal Water Pollution Control Act as 
amended (33 U.S.C. 1251-1387). Violations must be reported to the Federal awarding agency and the 
Regional Office of the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA).  
 
(H) Debarment and Suspension (Executive Orders 12549 and 12689) - A contract award (see 2 CFR 180.220) 
must not be made to parties listed on the governmentwide exclusions in the System for Award 
Management (SAM), in accordance with the OMB guidelines at 2 CFR 180 that implement Executive Orders 
12549 (3 CFR part 1986 Comp., p. 189) and 12689 (3 CFR part 1989 Comp., p. 235), “Debarment and 
Suspension.” SAM Exclusions contains the names of parties debarred, suspended, or otherwise excluded 
by agencies, as well as parties declared ineligible under statutory or regulatory authority other than 
Executive Order 12549.  
 
(I) Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment (31 U.S.C. 1352) - Contractors that apply or bid for an award exceeding 
$100,000 must file the required certification. Each tier certifies to the tier above that it will not and has not 
used Federal appropriated funds to pay any person or organization for influencing or attempting to 
influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of Congress, officer or employee of Congress, 
or an employee of a member of Congress in connection with obtaining any Federal contract, grant or any 
other award covered by 31 U.S.C. 1352. Each tier must also disclose any lobbying with non-Federal funds 
that takes place in connection with obtaining any Federal award. Such disclosures are forwarded from tier 
to tier up to the non-Federal award. 

 
  



11  

Name of Vendor, Contractor, or Subgrantee:   
 

Signature:   
 

Name of Authorized Signatory:   
 

Title:  
 

Date:   



12  

Appendix 4 
“44 C.F.R. PART 18 APPENDIX A – CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING” 

Certification for Contracts, Grants, Loans, and Cooperative Agreements 
 

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that: 
 

(1) No federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, to 
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of an agency, a Member of 
Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection 
with the awarding of any federal contract, the making of any federal grant, the making of any federal 
loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, 
amendment, or modification of any federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement. 

 
(2) If any funds other than federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for 
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an 
officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this 
federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit 
Standard Form-LLL, “Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying,” in accordance with its instructions. 

 
(3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award 
documents for all subawards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts under grants, 
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all subrecipients shall certify and disclose accordingly. This 
certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction 
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into 
this transaction imposed by section 1352, title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required 
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for 
each such failure. 

 
 
 

Signature of Contractor’s Authorized Official 
 
 
 

Name and Title of Contractor’s Authorized Official 
 
 
 

Date 



13  

Appendix 5 
Example RFP Decision Rubric 

 
  Architectural Design Services Category Weight Weight 
Category 1 Deliverables 20   
  Adequacy, clarity and completeness of response   10 
        
  Project plan - technical approach to the project   10 
        
Category 2 Price 30   
  Total proposal cost   25 
        
  Additional cost factors   5 
        
Category 3 Capacity 20   
  Number of employees dedicated to project   5 
        
  Past performance on similar size projects   10 
        
  Financial stability   5 
        
Category 4 Company Expertise 30   
  Expertise level of project members   10 
        
  Experience on related projects   10 
        
  Has firm shown innovative designs on past projects   10 
        
TOTAL   100   

    
Instructions:    
Step 1: Add factors in the decision in column B   
 Make sure you copy formulas if you add rows.   
Step 2: Change weights so that they add to 100 (see below cat weight column) 

 
This forces you to understand how important these elements are to you relative 
to each other.  

Step 3: Fill out areas with scores from 1-10   

 
Note for negatives, reverse your thinking (so a high score on negative like risk 
means it's not risky).  

 Use category weight subtotals to help guide your weighting.   

 
Note that as you do, the weighted averages are shown as subtotals and absolute 
totals along the bottom.  

 Resulting scores are shown at the bottom of each opinion.   
 



 
15 

 
 
 

 



RESOLUTION NO. 43-24 
 

A RESOLUTION IN SUPPORT OF A PARTNERSHIP BETWEEN THE ATLANTIC COMMUNITY 
SCHOOL DISTRICT AND THE CITY OF ATLANTIC FOR A SCHOOL RESOURCE OFFICER (SRO) 

POSTION  
 

 
WHEREAS, the Atlantic Community School District and the City of Atlantic jointly desire 

to develop a school resource officer program to provide a school-based approach to the 
development of a positive relationship between students and the police and the prevention of 
delinquency, alcohol and substance abuse, and gang involvement among students; and 
 
 

WHEREAS, the problems of delinquency, alcohol and substance abuse and other youth 
related problems that negatively affect the community and the schools can best be addressed 
in a proactive and preventive manner; and 
 
 

WHEREAS, such programs are recognized as being effective in the development of a 
positive relationship between law enforcement, faculty, and young people and in the 
prevention of delinquency; and 
 
 

WHEREAS, the Mayor, City Council and the School District intend to pursue the mutual 
goal school resource officer ("SRO") 
 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Atlantic, that a 
partnership with the Atlantic Community School District shall be pursued with negotiations 
regarding the position’s goals, operating structure, external financial support opportunities and 
long-term financing to commence as is appropriate for both parties.   
 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED by the City Council of the City of Atlantic this 19h day of June 2024. 
        
 
 

______________________________ 
       Grace N. Garrett, Mayor 
ATTEST:  
 
________________________ 
Rich Tupper, Acting City Clerk 
 



16 



1 
 

Road Closure and No Parking request for July 22 & 23, 2024. 

Monday July 22nd-Tuesday July 23rd starting at 6AM-2AM (or when vendors and entertainment areas 
are cleared) 

1.) Chestnut Street: from the Court House Driveway access in the 700 BLK to 
2nd street. (Used for stage/entertainment area, and vendors.) 

2.) 6th Street: from Locust to Walnut. (Used for entry to the entertainment 
area, Bike parking, and vendors.) 

3.) Poplar Street: From 7th Street to 5th Street. (Used for bike parking and 
portable bathrooms)  

4.) 7th Street *already approved by the Iowa DOT*: From Poplar to Walnut 
Street. (Used for entertainment area and crowed area while the bands 
play.) 

5.) 10th Street: At intersection with 7th street for Eastbound, traffic. (Only 
during peak times of riders getting to and leaving town.) 

6.) 14th Street: From Olive to Plum. (On Tuesday the 23rd while riders are 
leaving town.)  

 

Temporary no parking (will be put out on Sunday, July 21st and picked up after riders have left town on 
Tuesday, July 23rd.) 

1.) 10th Street: from 7th to Olive, North Side of Rd  
2.) 6th Street: from Sunnyside Lane to Polar Street – North side 
3.) Roosevelt Drive: from Olive to 14th Street – Both sides of the street 
4.) Palm Street: from 9th to 10th,  West side  
5.) East Mahogany at 9th Street: North & West Sides  
6.) West Mahogany at 10th Street:  West Side  
7.) Ed Podolak Dr: from Linn to Olive, North Side  
8.) Linn Street: from 10th to Ed Podolak Dr, West & East Sides  
9.) 14th by Heritage House Sign: South Side  
10.) Olive Street/Roosevelt Drive: 100 Ft North on East Side  
11.) 10th/Olive: Half Block in all directions  

 

Vehicle Permits 



2 
 

We will be asking vendors, committees, and groups that feel they will have a need to use a four-
wheeler, ATV, or golf cart to be used on July 22nd/23rd for easier access to their working area to fill out 
an application to do so. Those approved by the Chief of Police or his designee will be given a permit 
allowing them to be used and must be posted on the “Special Event Vehicle” while in use. A sample of 
the permit application and a sample permit have been included for review.  

 

 



This is the form to use when issuing permits for ATV’s, Gators/Golf Carts, etc.  Those 
with a VALID driver’s license age 18 and above may only drive these special event 
vehicles (SEV’s).  There will be no charge or fee for the permits.  Each permit number 
should be issued to the group or committee that is making the request.  One permit 
will be issued per vehicle. Proof of liability insurance on the ATV must be submitted 
with this application as well. 

A record of who requested the permit, their name, phone number, and address along 
with the name of the vendor, committee or user group, vehicle type and permit 
number should be kept on file at the APD.  This information also needs to be provided 
to public safety after all permits are issued.  Permits should only be issued to those 
that show a need and have signed the user agreement for the SEV’s. 

These permits need to be affixed to the vehicle and displayed in plain view at all times.  
Law Enforcement can revoke these permits if the need arises due to safety concerns 
or unsafe operation.  

 
 
 
 
Name of Requestor: __________________________________________________ 
 
Drivers License #: ____________________________________________________    
 
Phone Number:______________________________________________________ 
 
Address:____________________________________________________________ 
 
Vendor, Group, or Committee: __________________________________________ 
 
Vehicle Type:________________________________________________________ 
 
Permit number(s):____________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 

  Signature: _________________________                        Date: _________________ 
 
 
 
Chief of Police (or designee):                                Approved: ____         Denied: _____ 
 
 
Signature: _________________________                        Date: _________________ 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Atlantic RAGBRAI 

VEHICLE PERMIT 

 

Contact Name:                                                    Date of Permit: July 22/23 2024 

 

 

Vehicle Type:                                                      VENDOR: 

 

__________________________                     Permit #001 
        Authorized Signature 

 

 

 

 



 
17 
 
 
 
 



Library Director’s Report to City Council 
May 2024 

GENERAL UPDATES 

Public works loaned us staff to help address a water issue in the entrance air lock at the 
library. They helped clean out gutters, replaced and rerouted some downspouts, and 
put new sweepers on the base of the door that leaked. We are so grateful—especially 
when we had round after round of winds and heavy rainfall in May! 
 
The library is scheduled to participate once a month at Produce in the Park (June 6, 
July 11, August 1, and September 5). We are also committed to participating in the 
family fun day at the county fair on Saturday, July 27. We will be open regular hours for 
RAGBRAI on Monday, July 22 (9 am to 7 pm). Besides providing regular library 
services, we offer additional public bathrooms, a place to cool down and refill water 
bottles, and power for charging devices for the visiting RAGBRAI participants. 
 
Installation of the elevator update finally started on June 4 (after signing a contract for 
the work last July!). It should be up and running within a couple weeks.  
 

PROGRAMMING NOTES 

Summer programs have begun! We created a new webpage that just has the summer 
information. It is a sub-page of the Programs and Services section. The theme this year 
is Read-Renew-Repeat. We will be giving re-usable bags to anyone who completes the 
first part of the reading challenge. Please take a look and make plans to attend an event 
or two this summer. We had over 350 people attend the opening kick-off event on May 
30! Hopefully that is a good sign for participation all summer. 

 

STAFF UPDATES 

I’d like to (re)introduce library staff members over the coming months. 

Sue, the youth services librarian, has been working in libraries since 2013 and came to 
Atlantic in December of 2019. She has greatly expanded our youth audio book options, 
created new shelving categories to make it easier to find books for early readers, and 
started a graffiti book collection (mostly for tweens and teens). She is the current 
president of Boost 4 Families, a regional board that funds early childhood education and 
child well-being initiatives; a member of the Noble Initiative Foundation that planned and 
opened the new daycare facility in Griswold; and will soon be appointed to serve the 



2 

southwest region of the governor’s STEM Council. We are very grateful for the work she 
does to provide excellent library services and the way she connects with children, teens, 
and families. 

 

MEETINGS & CONTINUING EDUCATION 

 May 3   Attended Cass County Library Association meeting in Lewis 
May 8 Attended Rotary board meeting 

Led ILA Communications Committee meeting 
 May 13  Attended library board of trustees meeting  

May 14  City department heads meeting 
 May 15  Led library staff meeting 

Hosted and attended state library director’s roundtable event 
(3 CE) 
Presented program at Heritage House 

 May 21  Library closed early due to power outage after storm 
May 23  Library Marketing and Communications Mini-Conference (virtual) 

    Putting Principles into Practice (4 CE) 
May 24  Library appreciation breakfast for city staff & city council 
May 29  Meeting with ILA Communications co-chair (virtual)  



5155 3781
2475 $1,072.35 $220.15

Adult Teen Juvenile 698 $317.70 $138.95
1344 342 1307 66 $157.00 $8.20

20 1 $230.65
1 6 495 $367.00

1365 342 1313 46 $73.00

Adult Teen Juvenile
323 167 495

78 37 194 51
401 37 361 27

3819 46
8 37 1672

read A/V 7 0 898
382 273 12 167
170 6 3 506
119 392 3
671 665 6 JobNow/VetNow 8 1406

1336 31 Niche Academy 7 4211
36 19

1 265
Programs 57 15

5 7 4512
20 1129

7 7
1 8 9 415
1 12 3

76
2 8 18

25 73.5
9 41

51 22
25 45 35

Monthy Report for May 2024

TOTAL CIRCULATION PATRON TYPES LIBRARY INCOME
Atlantic General Fund Gifts Fund

Magazines Wiota Fees Memorials
Kit/Other Open Access Sale Grants

PRINT Cass Co. Rural Copier/Printer Donations
Books Marne Fax Sales

NON-PRINT County/Contract
Videos OPEN ACCESS Non-Res. Fees VIP CONNECTIONS

TOTAL Libraries Other Other
Out of State State

Avoca DATABASE USAGE Website Views
DIGITAL LIBRARY Casey Ancestry.com Unique Visits

Audios Adair
TOTAL Anita ONLINE LIBRARY

Total Physical Circ: Audubon

Hoopla Creston Heritage Quest
TOTAL Cumberland Facebook Likes

OverDrive books Council Bluffs Creativebug (views) Archives Users
OverDrive Magazine Corning HelpNow Archives sessions

Computer Usage
Total Attendees Griswold Tablet Usage

Total Digital Circ: Elk Horn Facebook Reach
Exira Rocket Languages

General Interest 406 Harlan
Outreach Lewis

LIBRARY PROGRAMS Greenfield Syndetics (quarterly)

Wi-Fi Usage
Adult 72 Massena

Door Count

Outreach 15 Oakland AWE Usage

VOLUNTEERS
Child (6-11) 120

Kimballton

Community Room

Amount Brayton

Teen Villisca

COMMUNITY SPACE

Outreach Walnut

Meeting Room A/B

Outreach Received New cards
TOTAL 845 Sent Renewed cards

Outreach

Other

Hours worked
Young Child (0-5) 232 INTERLIBRARY LOAN

Hancock




	Agenda through Claims Complete.pdf
	Agenda 06-19-2024.pdf
	Agenda Notes 06-19-2024.pdf
	Council E Packet Tabs 4.pdf
	Minutes & Misc.pdf
	MINUTES JUNE 5, 2024.pdf
	Tree Trimmer 6-19-2024.pdf
	Bills.pdf
	Claims 6-19-2024.pdf

	10 Complete.pdf
	Council E Packet Tabs 10.pdf
	Resolution #38-24 Bugdet Amendment Adoption Notice.pdf

	11 Completed.pdf
	Council E Packet Tabs 11.pdf
	Resolution #39-24 Second Half of FY Transfers.pdf

	12 done.pdf
	Council E Packet Tabs 12.pdf
	Resolution #40-24 Authorizing Loan for Solid Waste Management Note.pdf
	First Whitney Bank & Trust Atlantic, Iowa


	13 Complete.pdf
	Council E Packet Tabs 13.pdf
	Resolution 41-24 Adding Grandchild to Funeral Leave.pdf

	14 Complete.pdf
	Council E Packet Tabs 14.pdf
	Resolution #42-24 Adopting Procurement Policy for State Federal Grant Administration.pdf
	Procurement Policy for State and Federal Government Grants.pdf
	1. Introduction and Purpose.
	2. Code of Conduct.
	3. Procurement Requirements and Considerations.
	4. Procurement Methods.
	7. Documentation.
	A. New Contract/Purchase Order
	In addition to other provisions required by the Federal agency or non-Federal entity, all contracts made by the non-Federal entity under the Federal award must contain provisions covering the following, as applicable.
	(A) Contracts for more than the simplified acquisition threshold, which is the inflation adjusted amount determined by the Civilian Agency Acquisition Council and the Defense Acquisition Regulations Council (Councils) as authorized by 41 U.S.C. 1908, ...
	(B) All contracts in excess of $10,000 must address termination for cause and for convenience by the non-Federal entity including the manner by which it will be effected and the basis for settlement.
	(C) Equal Employment Opportunity. Except as otherwise provided under 41 CFR Part 60, all contracts that meet the definition of “federally assisted construction contract” in 41 CFR Part 60-1.3 must include the equal opportunity clause provided under 41...
	(D) Davis-Bacon Act, as amended (40 U.S.C. 3141-3148). When required by Federal program legislation, all prime construction contracts in excess of $2,000 awarded by non-Federal entities must include a provision for compliance with the Davis-Bacon Act ...
	(E) Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. 3701-3708). Where applicable, all contracts awarded by the non-Federal entity in excess of $100,000 that involve the employment of mechanics or laborers must include a provision for complianc...
	(F) Rights to Inventions Made Under a Contract or Agreement. If the Federal award meets the definition of “funding agreement” under 37 CFR § 401.2 (a) and the recipient or subrecipient wishes to enter into a contract with a small business firm or nonp...
	(G) Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 7401-7671q.) and the Federal Water Pollution Control Act (33 U.S.C. 1251-1387), as amended - Contracts and subgrants of amounts in excess of $150,000 must contain a provision that requires the non-Federal award to agree to...
	(H) Debarment and Suspension (Executive Orders 12549 and 12689) - A contract award (see 2 CFR 180.220) must not be made to parties listed on the governmentwide exclusions in the System for Award Management (SAM), in accordance with the OMB guidelines ...
	(I) Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment (31 U.S.C. 1352) - Contractors that apply or bid for an award exceeding $100,000 must file the required certification. Each tier certifies to the tier above that it will not and has not used Federal appropriated funds ...
	Certification for Contracts, Grants, Loans, and Cooperative Agreements




	15 COMPLETE.pdf
	Council E Packet Tabs 15.pdf
	Resolution # 43-24 Support for a Joint School Resource Officer.pdf

	16 Complete.pdf
	16 done.pdf
	Council E Packet Tabs 16.pdf
	Road Closure and No Parking request for July 22nd-23rd.pdf

	Application for vehilce permits.pdf
	Vehicle Permit Sample.pdf

	17 Complete.pdf
	Council E Packet Tabs 17.pdf
	2024.05 Library report.pdf
	General Updates
	Programming Notes
	Staff Updates
	Meetings & Continuing Education

	2024.05 library stats.pdf
	Public Works May 2024 Report.pdf


